
Minutes 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Association of Small Business Development Centers (ASBDC) 
September 1, 2008 
Chicago, Illinois 

 
 
Board Members Participating:  Jody Keenan (Chair); Don Wilson; Georgianna Parkin (Vice 
Chair); Jerry Cartwright (Secretary); Mike Myhre (Treasurer); Bill Carter; Becky Naugle; Al 
Salgado; Debbie Trujillo; Mary Lynn Wilkerson; Rich Werner. 
 
Others Participating:  Bob Bernier; Doug Gurley; Jim Heckmann; Jim King; Carol Lopucki; 
Carmen Marti; Greg Panichello; Mark Petrilli; Dan Ripke; Janice Washington; Lyle Wright; 
Mike Young; Dan O’Grady.  
 
Call to Order:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Keenan at 8:30 a.m. on Monday, 
September 1, 2008.   
 
Approval of Minutes:  Board Secretary Jerry Cartwright presented the draft minutes of the 
Board meeting that was held by conference call on August 26, 2008.  Al Salgado moved that the 
minutes be approved.  The motion was seconded by Mary Lynn Wilkerson and passed by voice 
vote.  
 
Financial Report:  Treasurer Mike Myhre reviewed the Association’s July financial statements 
and reported that the financial position of the Association is sound.   
 
Increasing Accreditation Costs:  The Board discussed the need for additional resources to 
cover the costs of accreditation.  It was suggested that the Association discuss with the SBA the 
need for additional accreditation funding.  However, it was noted that additional accreditation 
funding from SBA might come at the expense of core SBDC funding. 
 
Remarks by the Chair:  Chair Keenan thanked the Board and staff for their hard work and 
support this year.  She also thanked the chairs and members of committees, taskforces and 
interest sections for their hard work on behalf of the national network. Chair Keenan reviewed 
the strategic directions set by the Board in October, 2007, as follows:  (1) acquire, diversify and 
expand funding resources; (2) grow a unified network, committed to high performance; and (3) 
develop awareness of the national network through a common message.   
 
Chair Keenan noted that the Association had made significant progress in acquiring additional 
funding resources for the network, with a significant increase in the Federal FY 2008 
appropriation and the possibility of a significant increase in the Federal FY 2009 appropriation.   
 
Chair Keenan noted that the Association had made progress in growing a unified network 
committed to excellence, with the creation of the new Technology Counselor Certification and 
the creation of a voting seat on the Board for the representative of the Associate State Directors 
Working Group.   



 2 

 
Chair Keenan noted that mentoring, leadership development and succession planning were all 
defined as initiatives for the year. Chair Keenan noted the many mentoring efforts created by the 
Association, including the Accreditation Committee’s mentoring program; the Legislative and 
Stakeholder Outreach Committee’s new mentoring groups; the New State Director Training 
Committee’s program; and the Disaster Assistance and Recovery Interest Section’s outreach 
efforts.  Chair Keenan noted that the Annual Conference continues to be the Association’s 
premier professional and leadership development opportunity.  And, Chair Keenan noted that in 
response to Don Wilson’s announced retirement, the Board defined a transition plan for the 
Association to ensure a smooth transfer in leadership.  
 
Chair Keenan noted the Association’s work to develop awareness of the national network 
through a common message, with the work of the Communications and Marketing Committee 
and the Network and Member Connection newsletters.  
 
Chair Keenan concluded her remarks by noting the Association’s future challenges, including the 
continuing improvement of relations with the SBA; the development of clear and accurate 
metrics; and ensuring that all networks are able to meet Federal matching requirements. 
 
President’s Report: 
 

Conference Update:  Don Wilson updated the Board on final preparations for the ASBDC 
28th Annual Conference.  He stated that the Acting Administrator of the SBA, Mr. Sandy 
Baruah, had accepted the Association’s invitation to speak at the Conference.  However, 
Don Wilson stated that the Administrator might be prevented from coming to the 
Conference as a result of hurricanes in the Gulf Coast. 
 
Legislative Update:  Don Wilson updated the Board on legislation in Congress.  He stated 
that it was unlikely that Congress would complete the FY 2009 appropriations process 
before adjourning in October.  He stated that it is expected that Congress will pass a 
Continuing Appropriations Resolution (CR) to fund government programs, including the 
SBDC network, through the early part of 2009, and then complete the FY 2009 
appropriations bills early in 2009.  Regarding SBA Reauthorization, Don Wilson stated 
that it will be difficult for Congress to complete the SBA Reauthorization bill before 
adjourning for the year. 

 
Accreditation:  Mike Young, Chairman of the Accreditation Committee, updated the Board on 
the work of the Committee.  He stated that the Committee would hold a meeting and training 
session for new Committee members during the Conference in Chicago.  He stated that the 
Committee would hold three six-hour training sessions for network members during the 
Conference, and he thanked Max Summers and Barbara Necarsulmer for developing the training 
program.  He asked the Board to reconfirm Brett Rogers and him to new three-year terms on the 
Committee. 
 



 3 

Motion:  Chair Keenan moved that the Board approve the appointment of Mike Young 
and Brett Rogers to new three-year terms on the Accreditation Committee.  The motion 
was seconded by Al Salgado and approved by voice vote. 

 
EDMIS:  Greg Panichello, Chairman of the EDMIS Subcommittee, reviewed a paper that he 
prepared on EDMIS.  The paper details the strengths and weaknesses of EDMIS, and presents 
detailed recommendations for improving EDMIS.  The Board discussed Greg Panichello’s 
report, including the question of whether EDMIS should include sales and job creation data and 
serve as an economic impact reporting system.   It was agreed that the Association’s leadership 
(including Mike Young, Max Summers, Al Salgado and Greg Panichello) continue to work with 
SBA to address the issues raised in Greg Panichello’s report.   
 
SBA Update:  The Board welcomed Antonio Doss, Jean Smith and Jean Holcombe of the SBA 
Office of SBDCs, who updated the Board on the following matters. 
 

Unobligated (or Supplemental) SBDC Funding:  Antonio Doss stated that SBA will make 
approximately $460,000 in unobligated FY 2007 funding available to the Iowa SBDC 
this year for flood disaster recovery.  Approximately $107,000 in unobligated FY 2007 
funding will be used this year to make whole the SBDCs that suffered cuts in Federal 
funding as a result of the 2000 Census.  Additional unobligated FY 2007 funding will be 
re-programmed to FY 2008.  Antonio Doss stated that SBA has not yet determined how it 
will distribute unobligated FY 2008 SBDC funding.  He stated that SBA is considering 
using unobligated FY 2008 funding to support counselor certification; accreditation 
training; and projects in specific areas such as trade and technology.  
 
Carry-Over Funds:  Antonio Doss stated that SBA is likely to be less lenient in the future 
in allowing the use of carry-over funds.  He stated that SBA is considering requiring the 
expenditure of carry-over funds before new funding can be used. 
 
Disaster Funding:  Antonio Doss stated that SBA has decided that Portability Grant 
funding is not the best source of disaster funding.  He stated that SBA believes it is better 
to include funding for SBDC disaster activities in the SBA’s disaster supplemental 
requests to Congress. 
 
Goaling:  Antonio Doss stated that SBA’s 2009 goals for SBDCs have been established.  
He stated that the new goals emphasize extended engagement clients, because other 
measures such as capital access are difficult to predict in an uncertain economy. 
 
Veterans Grant Program:  Antonio Doss stated that SBA received 18 proposals for the 
new SBDC Veterans Grant program, and the proposals are in the process of being 
reviewed. 
 
Energy Grant Program:  Antonio Doss stated that an RFP for the new SBDC Energy 
Grant program funding was posted on grants.gov on August 29.   
 



 4 

SBDCNet:  Antonio Doss stated that it is expected that an RFP for the SBDCNet grant 
will be posted on grants.gov in the near future. 
 
Financial Reviews:  Antonio Doss stated that the SBA Office of SBDCs has started 
implementing the new risk-based financial review system.   
 
SBDC Regulations:  Antonio Doss stated that the SBA Office of SBDCs is close to 
finishing a draft of new regulations for SBDCs.  However, he stated that the White House 
has put a freeze on issuing any new regulations.  He stated that the Office of SBDCs will 
share the draft of new regulations with the ASBDC as appropriate. 
 
Program Announcement:  Antonio Doss stated that the SBA is committed to getting the 
issuance of the annual SBDC Program Announcement back on schedule. 
 
Accreditation Contract:  Jean Smith stated that the new accreditation contract between the 
ASBDC and SBA will be ready to be put in place in the near future.  She stated that it 
includes no substantive changes from the previous contract.  She was asked if the 
contract could be shared with the Board for its input before the contract is put in place, 
and she stated that she did not know if that could be done. 
 
SBA Annual Report on Entrepreneurial Development Programs:  Chair Keenan stated 
that, as a follow-up to a meeting between the ASBDC and Holly Schick of the SBA, 
representatives of the Association (including Al Salgado, Mike Young, Max Summers 
and Greg Panichello) will work with SBA to improve the metrics and other aspects of 
any future SBA Annual Reports on Entrepreneurial Development programs.   

 
EDMIS:  Chair Keenan discussed with the Board’s guests from SBA the report by Greg 
Panichello (Chair of the ASBDC EDMIS Subcommittee) on EDMIS.  She stated that the 
Association is very concerned that it cannot access EDMIS data, and she asked that 
quarterly EDMIS data be shared with the Association.  It was suggested that the 
Association and SBA hold another face-to-face meeting to discuss issues and concerns 
about EDMIS, beginning with the issues identified in Greg Panichello’s report. 
 
Notices of Award:  Chair Keenan urged SBA to issue Notices of Awards in a timely 
fashion.  Board members stated that it places SBDC networks in serious financial 
difficulty when they do not receive their Notices of Award in a timely fashion. 
 
Counselor Certification:  Antonio Doss stated that the SBA is committed to making it’s 
activities regarding counselor certification completely transparent. 

 
Strategic Planning:  Dan Parks and Marc King presented the findings of the surveys that they 
conducted at the request of the Board, as part of the Association’s strategic and transition 
planning.  Mr. Parks and Mr. King reviewed summaries of responses submitted by Association 
members and responses submitted by Board members.   
 
Executive Session:   



 5 

 
Motion:  Chair Keenan moved that the Board enter Executive Session, for the purpose of 
discussing personnel matters.  The motion was seconded by Bill Carter and passed by 
voice vote. 

 
Motion:  Jerry Cartwright moved that the Board exit Executive Session.  The motion was 
seconded by Bill Carter and passed by voice vote. 

 
Adjournment:  Becky Naugle moved that the meeting adjourn.  The motion was seconded by 
Bill Carter and passed by voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 5:47 p.m. on Monday, 
September 1, 2008. 
 
Next Meetings of the Board:   
 
Regular meetings of the Board are held by conference call on the fourth Tuesday of each month, 
at 2:30 p.m. (Eastern Time), with the following exceptions: 
 
• October 15-17, 2008 (Wednesday to Friday) 
 
• January 13-14, 2009 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 
 
• March 1, 2009 (Sunday, preceding the Spring Meeting) 
 
• June 9-10, 2009 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 
 
• September 13, 2009 (Sunday, preceding the Fall Conference in Orlando) 
 
• October 13-14, 2009 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 


